
1 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
   
Yoel  Weinberger, individually and on behalf of all others 
similarly situated; 

 

Civil Action No: ____________ 
Plaintiff,   

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
 
 
 

-v.-   

First Financial Asset Management, Inc. 

John Does l-25 

  

 

   Defendant.   
  

 
 
Plaintiff Yoel  Weinberger (hereinafter, “Plaintiff” or “Weinberger”), a New York resident, brings 

this Class Action Complaint by and through his attorneys, RC Law Group, PLLC, against 

Defendant First Financial Asset Management, Inc. (hereinafter “Defendant”), individually and on 

behalf of a class of all others similarly situated, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, based upon information and belief of Plaintiff’s counsel, except for allegations 

specifically pertaining to Plaintiff, which are based upon Plaintiff's personal knowledge. 

 

INTRODUCTION/PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1. Congress enacted the FDCPA in 1977 in response to the "abundant evidence of the 

use of abusive, deceptive, and unfair debt collection practices by many debt collectors." 15 

U.S.C. §1692(a). At that time, Congress was concerned that "abusive debt collection practices 

contribute to the number of personal bankruptcies, to material instability, to the loss of jobs, 

and to invasions of individual privacy." Id. Congress concluded that "existing laws…[we]re 
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inadequate to protect consumers," and that "'the effective collection of debts" does not require 

"misrepresentation or other abusive debt collection practices." 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692(b) & (c). 

2. Congress explained that the purpose of the Act was not only to eliminate abusive 

debt collection practices, but also to "insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using 

abusive debt collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged." ld. § 1692(e). After 

determining that the existing consumer protection laws were inadequate, Congress gave 

consumers a private cause of action against debt collectors who fail to comply with the Act. Id. 

§ 1692k. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE  

3. The Court has jurisdiction over this class action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 

15 U.S.C. § 1692 et. seq. and 28 U.S.C. § 2201.  If applicable, the Court also has pendant 

jurisdiction over the State law claims in this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a). 

4. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2). 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

5. Plaintiff brings this class action on behalf of a class of New York consumers 

under§ 1692 et seq. of Title 15 of the United States Code, commonly referred to as the Fair 

Debt Collections Practices Act ("FDCPA"), and 

6. Plaintiff is seeking damages and declaratory and injunctive relief. 

PARTIES 

7. Plaintiff is a resident of the State of New York, County of Kings, residing at 934 

51st Street, 2nd Floor, Brooklyn, NY 11219. 
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8. First Financial Asset Management, Inc. is a "debt collector" as the phrase is defined 

in 15 U.S.C. § 1692(a)(6) and used in the FDCPA with an address at 3091 Governors Lake 

Drive, Suite 500, Norcross, GA 30071. 

9. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a company that uses the mail, telephone, 

and facsimile and regularly engages in business the principal purpose of which is to attempt to 

collect debts alleged to be due another. 

10. Defendant is a "debt collector," as defined under the FDCPA under 15 U.S.C. § 

1692a(6). 

11. John Does l-25, are fictitious names of individuals and businesses alleged for the 

purpose of substituting names of Defendants whose identities will be disclosed in discovery 

and should be made parties to this action. 

CLASS ALLEGATIONS 
12. Plaintiffs bring this claim on behalf of the following case, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. 

P. 23(a) and 23(b)(3). 

13. The Class consists of:  

a. all individuals with addresses in the State of New York; 

b. to whom First Financial Asset Management, Inc. sent a collection letter 

attempting to collect a consumer debt; 

c. that included deceptive and misleading disclosures regarding the requirements 

for reporting a discharge of indebtedness; 

d. which letter was sent on or after a date one (1) year prior to the filing of this 

action and on or before a date twenty-one (2l) days after the filing of this action. 
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14. The identities of all class members are readily ascertainable from the records of 

Defendants and those companies and entities on whose behalf they attempt to collect and/or 

have purchased debts. 

15. Excluded from the Plaintiff Classes are the Defendants and all officer, members, 

partners, managers, directors and employees of the Defendants and their respective immediate 

families, and legal counsel for all parties to this action, and all members of their immediate 

families.  

16. There are questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff Classes, which 

common issues predominate over any issues involving only individual class members. The 

principal issue is whether the Defendants' written communications to consumers, in the forms 

attached as Exhibit A, violate 15 U.S.C. §§ l692e and 1692g. 

17. The Plaintiffs' claims are typical of the class members, as all are based upon the 

same facts and legal theories. The Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of 

the Plaintiff Classes defined in this complaint. The Plaintiffs have retained counsel with 

experience in handling consumer lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions, and neither 

the Plaintiffs nor their attorneys have any interests, which might cause them not to vigorously 

pursue this action. 

18. This action has been brought, and may properly be maintained, as a class action 

pursuant to the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure because there is a 

well-defined community interest in the litigation: 

a. Numerosity: The Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, 

that the Plaintiff Classes defined above are so numerous that joinder of all 

members would be impractical. 
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b. Common Questions Predominate: Common questions of law and fact exist as 

to all members of the Plaintiff Classes and those questions predominance over 

any questions or issues involving only individual class members. The principal 

issue is \whether the Defendants' written communications to consumers, in the 

forms attached as Exhibit A violate 15 U.S.C. § l692e and §1692g. 

c. Typicality: The Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the class 

members. The Plaintiffs and all members of the Plaintiff Classes have claims 

arising out of the Defendants' common uniform course of conduct complained 

of herein. 

d. Adequacy: The Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the 

class members insofar as Plaintiffs have no interests that are adverse to the 

absent class members. The Plaintiffs are committed to vigorously litigating this 

matter. Plaintiffs have also retained counsel experienced in handling consumer 

lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions. Neither the Plaintiffs nor their 

counsel have any interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue the 

instant class action lawsuit. 

e. Superiority: A class action is superior to the other available means for the fair 

and efficient adjudication of this controversy because individual joinder of all 

members would be impracticable. Class action treatment will permit a large 

number of similarly situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a 

single forum efficiently and without unnecessary duplication of effort and 

expense that individual actions would engender. 
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19. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

is also appropriate in that the questions of law and fact common to members of the Plaintiff 

Classes predominate over any questions affecting an individual member, and a class action is 

superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy. 

20. Depending on the outcome of further investigation and discovery, Plaintiffs may, at 

the time of class certification motion, seek to certify a class(es) only as to particular issues 

pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(4). 

 
FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

21. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs 

numbered above herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length 

herein. 

22. Some time prior to January 3, 2017, an obligation was allegedly incurred to HSBC 

Bank USA, N.A. 

23. The HSBC Bank USA, N.A. obligation arose out of transactions in which money, 

property, insurance or services, which are the subject of the transaction, are primarily for 

personal, family or household purposes. 

24. The alleged HSBC Bank USA, N.A. obligation is a "debt" as defined by 15 U.S.C. 

§1692a(5). 

25. HSBC Bank USA, N.A. is a "creditor" as defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692a(4). 

26. HSBC Bank USA, N.A. or a subsequent owner of the HSBC Bank USA, N.A. debt 

contracted the Defendant to collect the alleged debt. 
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27. Defendant collects and attempts to collect debts incurred or alleged to have been 

incurred for personal, family or household purposes on behalf of creditors using the United 

States Postal Services, telephone and internet. 

 
 

Violation I – January 3, 2017 Collection Letter 
 

28. On or about January 3, 2017, Defendant sent the Plaintiff a collection notice (the 

“Collection Letter”) regarding the alleged debt owed to HSBC Bank USA, N.A. See January 

3. 2017 Collection Letter – Attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

29. The letter was an attempt to collect an outstanding “Account Balance Due: 

$1,820.29”. 

30. The opening paragraphs of the Collection Letter offer Plaintiff the opportunity “to 

satisfy this account for a fraction of the amount now owed…Make a payment of $1,274.20 to 

our office no later than 01/25/2017 and we will consider this account as settled in full and your 

obligation to HSBC Bank USA, N.A. will be considered satisfied.” 

31. As stated in Defendant’s Collection Letter, Defendant offered Plaintiff the 

opportunity to settle its obligation in full at a $546.09 discount. 

32. Following its formal closing, the letter continues in a postscript: “HSBC Bank 

USA, N.A. is subject to certain IRS reporting requirements for debt forgiveness exceeding 

$600 of principal. When required, HSBC Bank USA, N.A. will report debt forgiveness on 

form 1099C.” 

33. The inclusion of this postscript statement misleads the consumer, as it is completely 

unnecessary, as the amount of debt forgiveness offered by Defendant was less than $600.00. 
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34. The inclusion of this postscript statement misleads the consumer, as it is completely 

unnecessary, as the amount of debt forgiveness offered by Defendant was only $546.09. 

35. The inclusion of the postscript statement misleads the consumer as to the impact of 

attempting to settle the matter for less than what the Defendant claims is owed. 

36. Including specific references to the IRS, Form 1099C and the $600 debt 

forgiveness threshold in Defendant’s postscript statement only further confuses, misleads and 

deceives the least sophisticated consumer. 

37. Defendant’s postscript statement is both false and deceptive as there are many 

factors which make up the requirement to file a 1099C.  (See Good v. Nationwide Credit, Inc., 

finding that the statement “American express is required to file a form 1099C with the Internal 

Revenue Service for any canceled debt of $600 or more. Please consult your tax advisor 

concerning any tax questions,” is not true and does not accurately reflect the relevant law.) 

38. Defendant’s Collection Letter also fails to disclose that there is a distinction 

between principal and interest in regards to IRS requirements. 

39. The Collection Letter fails to disclose what portion of the account balance due, 

$1,820.29, or proposed settlement amount, $1274.20, is the alleged underlying debt, and what 

portion is additional fees and/or interest. 

40. Defendant’s Collection Letter gives consumers false and deceptive tax information. 

41. As a result of Defendant's deceptive, misleading and unfair debt collection 

practices, Plaintiff has been damaged. 
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COUNT I 
VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT 15 U.S.C. §1692e 

et seq. 

42. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs 

above herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length herein. 

43. Defendant’s debt collection efforts attempted and/or directed towards the Plaintiff 

violated various provisions of the FDCPA, including but not limited to 15 U.S.C. § 1692e. 

44. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1692e, a debt collector may not use any false, deceptive, or 

misleading representation or means in connection with the collection of any debt. 

a. Defendant violated §1692e (10) by making a false and misleading 

representations regarding the requirements for reporting a discharge of 

indebtedness. 

45. By reason thereof, Defendant is liable to Plaintiff for judgment that Defendant's 

conduct violated Section 1692e et seq. of the FDCPA, actual damages, statutory damages, 

costs and attorneys’ fees. 

 
DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

 
Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff hereby requests a 

trial by jury on all issues so triable. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Yoel Weinberger, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated 

demands judgment from Defendant First Financial Asset Management, Inc., as follows: 

1. Declaring that this action is properly maintainable as a Class Action and certifying 

Plaintiff as Class representative, and Daniel Kohn, Esq. as Class Counsel; 

2. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class statutory damages; 

3. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class actual damages; 

4. Awarding Plaintiff costs of this Action, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 

expenses; 

5. Awarding pre-judgment interest and post-judgment interest; and 

6. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class such other and further relief as this Court may 

deem just and proper. 

Dated: Hackensack, New Jersey  
January 2, 2018 

        
        /s/ Daniel Kohn  
       By:  Daniel Kohn  
 

RC Law Group, PLLC 
       285 Passaic Street 
       Hackensack, NJ 07601 
       Phone: (201) 282-6500 
       Fax: (201) 282-6501 
       Attorneys For Plaintiff  
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FIRST FINANCIAL ASSET AIGMT, INC.

FFAMLGlobal Receivable Portfolio Solutions Mon-Thurs 8:00 am 9:00 pm EST

3091 Governors Lake Drive, Suite 500 Friday 8:00 am 5:00 pm EST

Peachtree Corners, GA 30071 Saturday 8:00 am 12:00 prn EST

888-771-3082 January 3, 2017

Account Summary
Current Creditor: FISBC BANK USA, N.A.

FFAM Account Number: W211 Original Creditor Account
Number:

FFAM Telephone Number: 888-771-3082 Account Balance Due: S1.820.29

The total amount due as of The total amount of interest
$1,820.29 $0.00

charge-off: accrued since charge-off:
The total amount of The total amount of
non-interest charges $0.00 payments made on the debt $0.00
accrued since charge-off: since charge-off:

Dear Yoel Weinberger

In an effort to provide you the opportunity to resolve this indebtiness, we would like to extend to you an

offer to satisfy this account for a fraction of the amount now owed.

Our offer to you is as follows:

Make a payment of $1.274.20 to our office no later than 01/25/2017 and we will consider this account as

settled in full and your obligation to HSBC BANK USA, N.A. will be considered satisfied.

Please contact our office at 888-771-3082 to discuss resolution of this account or visit our website,
http://www.paylfam.com to negotiate a payment arrangement and/or make a payment. Please see the
Payment Options area below for Payment by Internet instructions.

Sincerely,

First Financial Asset Management
This communication is from a debt collector. This is an attempt to collect a debt. Any information
obtained will be used for that purpose.

HSBC BANK USA, N.A. is subject to certain IRS reporting requirements for debt forgiveness
exceeding $600 of principal. When required, EISBC BANK USA, N.A. will report debt forgiveness on

form 1099C. This is solely a filing requirement HSBC BANK USA, N.A. is not in a position to
determine or advise you whether this will have any tax consequences. Please consult independent tax
counsel of your own choosing if you desire tax advice about tax consequences which may result from
this settlement.

If you pit', or agree to pay, the debt or any portion ofpe icitz.bt. the payment oragmyeetnent to pay ay be
construe as (1 an 4c.k_npwleageplent ot the debt by t e debtbr and .(.2) a waiver-by deb(or ot any
appiicab e statute ot limitations that otherwise mech.' cs the col ection o t' the, debt. it you do not
understand or have questions concerning your legal rig,hts or ob_igation relating to t e,debt, you should
seek legal advice.

***Please See Reverse For Further Information***

This agency is licensed by New YolCi, Dep.artmen,t .of Consgmer Affairs License #1295910_ You may cajl Alethia Tignerat tqe roll tr,ec teleptlone.num Der, on le Wont e. ot tnis letter uring normal business nOurs. I he name ot tne current
creditor ana tne originating creditor or t is debt is set I-oral in t ns letter.

We are required by regulation of the New York State Department of Financial Services to notify you of the followingintormation.

Debt collectors, in ac5lonrdanee with, the,Eair Qebt collection.Fractices A,et, 1.5 U.S.C. §.1692 et s,eci. are prohibited from
extgaging in abusive, eceptive, anci,untair debt coectign.gtforts, including bikt not imitea to; (i) tne use or tnreat p-f violence
tnr-eat, (n) tile use of o scene or protane Language, ana (in) repeated pnone calls wit tne intent to annoy, abuse or narass.

f, c,,,,,,,, or,,,..dgvollyeictw recgeivis, 1.arr.tigylittitidgaTi3reii stu:);a%riiiileciiittati-t, statteitancifggeerlta.s(Eji)aLcirer tNiy.pou'llic as'sstle•sanr (wji:'ar. (2„ispousiil sup.por, majoteriance aAonv) or chLfSsupiic3ort,, (:.11 unemplovnlentudiits„ (6(3)
Lotisl[ day bt,one its, i, wo Ker Compensangnenents, ZS), poi), lig or [5Livate pensions, (9) veterans nenetits, fitiu)edelai,.
stirent roans. eaerai stu ent grants, and federal work s uay tunds. and L 1) ninety percent ot your wage or s, ary earned in
tile ast sixty days.
WE

Et.

6.RE 'REQUIRE:1V B.Y I,AN, TO GIVE YOU Tqr 170, 1, 11T,NG INF:OR, MATION A.BOUT:ri-os DEBT. The legal
time nip (statute orimptations tor sui(wi..,yry tim,ect tnis p t nas expired., However, Ar, some000rri()sues QU anyway to try

mand a -e you pay t -us debt, CQ rt rules I $J1J to te i t le.courftnat,tne statute,oi fimitation las, e pired to pi event
Me cre itor !Torn obtapuntiogi.gmeig, ven,hougl tne statu,te o .ilipita,tionvias expired, you may L US to make,
garyiaen.GFienever, 13h, AWAKt. Ir you ma,c a-payment, tile ct editor s rignts to sue you to maKe you pay t e entire balance

FFAN1 whl fr.I&e I of I
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Yoel Weinberger, individually and on behalf of all others 
similarly situated;

Queens

RC Law Group PLLC 
285 Passaic Street, Hackensack, NJ, 07601 
201-282-6500

 
First Financial Asset Management, Inc., 
John Does l-25

Fair Debt Collection Practices Act - 15 USC 1692

Improper collection efforts regarding debt collection

01/02/2018 /s/ Daniel Kohn
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Yes     No 

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court? 

Yes     (If yes, please explain No 
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff(s)

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

DOUGLAS C. PALMER
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      Eastern District of New York

Yoel  Weinberger, individually and on behalf of all 
others similarly situated;

1:18-cv-00011

First Financial Asset Management, Inc. 
John Does l-25

First Financial Asset Management, Inc. 
C/O Corporation Service Company 
80 State Street 
Albany, NY 12207

Daniel Kohn 
RC Law Group, PLLC 
285 Passaic Street 
Hackensack, NJ 07601
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

’ Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: First Financial Asset Management Sued Over Debt Collection Letter’s ‘Misleading’ Tax Information

https://www.classaction.org/news/first-financial-asset-management-sued-over-debt-collection-letters-misleading-tax-information



